ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COVW TTEE
May 7, 2004
8:27 a.m

TAPE(S) 04-67, 68
MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senat or Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Hollis French

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 367(FIN) am
"An Act relating to the licensing and regulation of adult-
ori ented busi nesses; and providing for an effective date."

MOVED SCS CSHB 367(JUD) OUT OF COWM TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO 552(FIN) am
"An Act relating to the creation of the Al aska Gam ng Commi ssion
to regulate ganbling; authorizing the Al aska Gam ng Comm ssion

to license ganbling ganmes and ganbling casino owners and
suppliers and to 1issue occupational Ilicenses for ganbling
enpl oyees; Ilimting casino ganbling to municipalities with a
popul ation of 150,000 or nore; allowing the Alaska Gamng
Comm ssion to issue only one owner's license for a ganbling
casino in certain nmunicipalities wwth a popul ation of 150,000 or
nor e; creating crinmes relating to ganbling and setting

requi renents for ganbling; creating the state gamng fund in the
general fund; setting a gross receipts tax on ganbling ganes
limting the authority of a municipality to tax the adjusted
gross receipts of ganbling ganes."”

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 246

"An Act relating to the commission of an offense or a juvenile
del i nquency act involving the victims race, sex, color, creed,
physi cal or nental disability, sexual orientation, ancestry, or
national origin; relating to sentencing, informal adjustnent,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- May 7, 2004



and adjudication for those offenses and acts; relating to a
diversity tolerance program for certain juvenile delinquency
acts; relating to a civil cause of action for certain acts
involving discrimnatory harassnent; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED CSSB 246(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 397
"An Act relating to open neetings guidelines applicable to
| egi sl ators, to t he confidentiality of conpl aints and
proceedings involving alleging violations of AS 24.60, and to
hearings on fornal charges by the Select Commttee on
Legislative Ethics or its subconmittees.”

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 367

SHORT TI TLE: LI CENSI NG ADULT- ORI ENTED BUSI NESSES
SPONSCOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE, GARA

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED ( 1/ 9/ 04)

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 (H) L&C, JUD, FIN

01/ 30/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

01/ 30/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 30/ 04 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 02/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 02/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 367(L&C) Qut of Committee
02/ 02/ 04 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 05/ 04 (H) L&C RPT CS(L&C) NT 2DP 3NR 2AM

02/ 05/ 04 (H DP: DAHLSTROM ANDERSON;, NR: CRAWFORD,
02/ 05/ 04 (H) LYNN, GATTO AM ROKEBERG, GUTTENBERG
02/ 09/ 04 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 09/ 04 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed to 2/16/04>
02/ 16/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 16/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 16/ 04 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 23/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 23/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 25/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 25/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 25/ 04 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

02/ 27/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 27/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 367(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 27/ 04 (H M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 03/ 04 (H) JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 3DP 3NR

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- May 7, 2004



03/ 03/ 04 (H DP: ANDERSON, GARA, MCGUI RE;

03/ 03/ 04 (H NR SAMUELS, GRUENBERG OGG

04/ 15/ 04 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 15/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 367(FIN) Qut of Committee
04/ 15/ 04 (H M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 19/ 04 (H) FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 3DP 6NR

04/ 19/ 04 (H) DP: MEYER, HARRI'S, WLLI AVS;

04/ 19/ 04 (H NR HAWKER, STOLTZE, MOSES, CHENAULT,
04/ 19/ 04 (H) FATE, FOSTER

04/ 27/ 04 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 27/ 04 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 367(FI N) AM

04/ 28/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 28/ 04 (S) L&C, JUD, FIN

04/ 29/ 04 (S) L&C REFERRAL WAl VED

05/ 05/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

05/ 05/ 04 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

05/ 07/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HB 552

SHORT TI TLE: GAMBLI NG & GAM NG
SPONSOR(s): FI NANCE

04/ 06/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 06/ 04 (H) FI'N

04/ 19/ 04 (H) FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 19/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

04/ 19/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 21/ 04 (H) FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

04/ 21/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 552(FIN) Qut of Committee
04/ 21/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 22/ 04 (H) FIN RPT CS(FIN) 2DP 1DNP 6NR 1AM

04/ 22/ 04 (H DP: FATE, WLLIAVMS;, DNP: STOLTZE;

04/ 22/ 04 (H) NR. MEYER, HAWKER, CROFT, MOSES, JOULE,
04/ 22/ 04 (H) HARRI S; AM CHENAULT

05/ 01/ 04 (H) MOTI ON FOR REFERRAL TO L&C

05/ 01/ 04 (H) AVEND TO COWM TTEE OF WHOLE W THDRAWN
05/ 01/ 04 (H REFERRAL TO L&C FAI LED Y7 N31 E2

05/ 03/ 04 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

05/ 03/ 04 (H) VERSI ON: CSHB 552( FIN) AM

05/ 04/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

05/ 04/ 04 (S) JUD, FIN

05/ 07/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 246

SHORT TI TLE: HATE CRI MES/ DI SCRI M NATI O\ TOLERANCE PROG
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) LI NCOLN

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- May 7, 2004



01/ 12/ 04 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 23/ 04 (S STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 23/ 04 (S) Moved SB 246 Qut of Conmittee
03/ 23/ 04 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 24/ 04 (S) STA RPT 4DP

03/ 24/ 04 (S) DP: STEVENS G HOFFMAN, STEDVAN, GUESS
03/ 24/ 04 (S FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
04/ 07/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 07/ 04 (S) Heard & Held

04/ 07/ 04 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 23/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
04/ 23/ 04 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

05/ 04/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
05/ 04/ 04 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

05/ 05/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
05/ 05/ 04 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

05/ 07/ 04 (S) JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M. Heath Hilyard

Staff to Representative McQ@iire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 367 for the sponsor

Ms. Cara Nyqui st

Covenant House

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports CSHB 367( FI N) am

Ms. Andree McC eod
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposed to CSHB 367( FI N)am

M. Dal e Fox

CHARR

Anchor age

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Qpposed to CSHB 367( FI N) am

Ms. Carol Hartman

Fant asi es

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to CSHB 367( FI N)am

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4-

May 7, 2004



Ms. Kat hy Hartman

Fant asi es

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposed to CSHB 367(FI N)am

M. Tom Wi ght

House Finance Commttee Staff

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PGSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 522 for the House Finance
Comm ttee

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 246

M. Jerry Luckhaupt

Legal and Research Services Division

Legi sl ative Affairs Agency

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about versions S and Q
of SB 246.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 04-67, SIDE A

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:27 a.m Senat ors French, Qgan,
Therriault and Chair Seekins were present. He announced that he
would take up bills as people were available to testify, and
that commttee would begin with HB 367.

"#HB 367
CSHB 367(FI N)am LI CENSI NG ADULT- ORI ENTED BUSI NESSES

MR. HEATH HILYARD, staff to Representative Lesil MQire,
sponsor, told nenbers that HB 367 has undergone numnerous

iterations wth regard to the provisions included. Wen
Representative MQ@ire began to work on this bill, she was
| ooking at the concept of both business and occupational
|l icensing: business licensing for the clubs and occupational
| i censi ng for entertainers. However, due to fiscal
consi derations and nunmerous objections raised, the bill focuses

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- May 7, 2004



only on business |icenses. That focus is the nost fiscally
responsi bl e and the el enent nost agreed upon.

MR HLYARD said the version that passed the House also
specifies the types of sexual contact prohibited. Sone Title 4
provi sions, which pertain to regulating alcohol establishnents
and prohibit such specified sexual contact, were incorporated
into CSHB 367(FI Nam and apply to establishnents that do and do
not serve alcohol. In addition, the House Labor and Commerce
Commttee raised the age of patron and entertainer to 21.
However, after discussions in the House Judiciary Conmttee and
on the House floor about an ongoing case in Mssouri, the House
dropped the age down to 18 to alleviate any constitutional
concerns. The bill also provides for particular restrictions so
that applicants for business |licenses cannot have been convicted
of certain sex and drug offenses. It also requires notification
to comunity council s or ot her non- profit comunity
organi zations. He offered to answer questions.

SENATOR OGAN noted the bill talks about sharing a residential
unit inhabited by mnors and asked if that has been di scussed.

MR. HILYARD said as a result of interim deliberations when this
bill was being drafted, several people expressed concern about
massage parlors and escort services in residential areas that
m ght share entryways with places that mnors enter and exit so
that was added as a precaution. He said he is not aware of any
exi sting problemw th strip clubs.

SENATOR OGAN asked if this bill addresses a situation where a
not her works as a prostitute at hone.

MR, H LYARD said it does not, to his know edge, only because

prostitution is illegal on its face at this tine. Representative
MCGuire's interest was to regulate activities that are not
currently illegal or that the lawis silent on.

SENATOR OGAN asked if all activities in adult oriented
businesses wll have to take place in the open so that a
busi ness cannot have private roons for view ng pornography.

MR. H LYARD said he believes that is correct. CSHB 367(FIN) am
addresses the interior layout of these establishnments so that
all areas are visible fromthe entrance.

SENATOR OGAN asked M. Hilyard if he anticipates any First
Amendment issues arising from that requirenent. He said that

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- May 7, 2004



technically, an adult oriented business does not differ from a
hotel that offers sexually explicit materials on a pay-per-view
basi s.

MR. HI LYARD acknow edged that Senator Ogan's concern about the
First Amendnent is a good point and is one of the reasons the
House backed away from requiring participants to be 21. The
State of Mssouri enacted a provision to raise the age of
dancers from 18 to 19 last year and that is currently in federa
court.

He explained that the First Anmendnent does not provide a
guaranteed constitutional right to be entertained. However, the
courts have said, particularly in Barn v. den Theater, that the
act of erotic dancing is covered but that right is not as
inportant as other <core rights such as political speech.
Representative McCQuire believes that the House has gone to the
extent possible in this particular version to alleviate any
Fi rst Anendnent concerns.

SENATOR OGAN asked if the bill addresses private roons in adult
ori ented busi nesses that do not have entertai ners.

MR. H LYARD said this version does not. Representative MQire
backed away from trying to regulate bookstores or other such
busi nesses because there are very few in the state and because
Assenbl yman Dan Sullivan sponsored a zoning regulation in
Novenber that addressed +those types of establishnments in
Anchor age.

SENATOR OGAN asked if requiring a partition in adult book or
vi deo stores would cause a First Amendnent problem

MR. HI LYARD said he did not believe so because the issue has to
do with the expressive act of dancing and whether the right to
be entertained falls under the First Anendnent. He deferred to
Senat or French for nore infornmation.

SENATOR FRENCH said this is an unclear area and one would not
know until the U S. Suprene Court decided the issue.

SENATOR FRENCH then asked the mninmum age at which one can
| egal |y buy tobacco products.

MR. HI LYARD replied 19.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- May 7, 2004



SENATOR FRENCH said he asked that because this bill is the
result of sone comunity activists who were concerned that
mnors were frequenting or working at these establishnents. He
participated in a community council discussion the previous
evening. That council was very unhappy that the mninmum age in
the bill was raised to 21 and then dropped back down to 18. He
said he appreciates the huge anmount of work Representative
McGQuire has done on this bill and then suggested that the
comnittee raise the age to 19 as that would alleviate the
probl em of 18-year-old high school students going to or working
in strip clubs. He said he believes that would wthstand a
constitutional challenge and that it would be worth chal |l engi ng.

SENATOR FRENCH then noved to raise the age of participation or
enpl oynment in an adult oriented business to 19 [ Arendnent 1].

CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

MR. HILYARD said Senator French is absolutely correct wth
regard to the conmmunity council's concern: that high school
students are both working in and visiting these establishnents.
However, with regard to raising the age to 19, Representatives
McG@Quire and Gara have discussed the issue at length and felt
that would be difficult to get through the legislature and the
courts. He did not believe Representative MQ@iire would oppose
raising the age but she is concerned about the case underway in
M ssouri. He said she also |ooked at the Al aska Constitution and
was concerned that if the bill wuld not neet federal
constitutional scrutiny, it would have nore difficulty neeting
state constitutional scrutiny.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if Representative MQ@ire considered

including a severability clause to npot that one provision and
make the default age 18 if the court decision is adverse.

MR. HI LYARD said the House Judiciary Comrittee adopted a version
that included a severability clause but it was pulled out when
t he House dropped the age back to 18.

SENATOR FRENCH noved to anend Anmendnent 1 to add a severability
cl ause.

SENATOR OGAN spoke in support of the anendnent.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that w thout objection, the anmendnent to
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- May 7, 2004



MR. HI LYARD asked Senator French if he intended to raise the age
to 19 for both patrons and entertainers.

SENATOR FRENCH said he intended the age of 19 to apply to both.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that was his understanding. He then noted
that w thout further discussion or objection, Amendnent 1 as
anended was adopted as a conceptual anendnent.

CHAI R SEEKINS then announced he would take public testinony but
placed a two-mnute tine limt on each participant's testinony.

M5. CARA NYQUI ST, an Al aska attorney, stated support for HB 367
and informed nmenbers she submitted witten testinony. Regarding
the First Anendnent, she believes the age for patronage and
enpl oyment could be 19 or 21. She reviewed the constitutional
issues and found the case law to be clear that states have a
duty to regulate these types of Dbusinesses. She said she
believes the conmttees have heard a |ot of testinony about the
| ocal effects of these unregul ated busi nesses. She believes this
| egislation is distinguishable from simlar Jlaws in other
jurisdictions that are being challenged. In those jurisdictions,
the legislatures did not nmake an extensive record of testinony
on the local effects. She said she does not believe this bill is
about a noral agenda, it originated as the result of stories
told by young people about sone shocking things that are going
on in these establishnents.

M5. ANDREE MCCLEOD stated opposition to CSHB 367(FI N)am because
it was poorly researched and presented and dooned from the
start. She said one thing she has |learned while researching this
bill is that wonen are not the people being exploited. The
inmpetus for this bill was information conpiled by unknown
individuals at secret neetings held during the interim That
information cannot be substantiated. She is aware that the
director of the Covenant House and some of her clients were
involved. She learned that during the intake process at the
Covenant House, the nore perverse the story told by the client,
the nore services are provided. This correlation is ripe for
abuse. Wien the clubs got involved, a true exam nation of CSHB
367( FI N) am began.

MR. DALE FOX, Executive Director of the Cabaret, Hotel and
Restaurant Retailers' Association (CHARR), said CHARR is opposed
to CSHB 367(FINJam in its current form as it believes the
| egislation is a solution looking for a problem He referred to
t he purpose and findings of the bill and said the authors of the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- May 7, 2004



bill have borrowed from other states where such problens exist.
The findings refer to |awabiding people being accosted and
harassed on the street, which does not happen in Alaska. The
findings also refer to the proliferation of pornographic litter,
whi ch does not happen in Alaska. He noted that prostitution is
al so suggested as one of the reasons for this bill, however
prostitution is already illegal. Regarding the issue of age, he
said the legislature could establish a mninum age based on the
age it believes people are mature enough to be tried as adults.

SENATOR OGAN countered that he has spent tine patrolling with
Anchorage Police Departnent officers in Anchorage at night and a
| ot is going on.

M5. CAROL HARTMAN, co-owner of Fantasies, an adult-oriented
busi ness, said the adult-oriented club industry is being singled
out because of one circunstance. She said if the legislature is
going to take action, the sane restrictions should apply to all
18 vyear olds seeking enploynment. [Mst of M. Hartman's
testi nony was i naudible.]

M5. KATHY HARTMAN, co-owner of Fantasies, told nenbers that
Fantasies is an 18 and over gentlenen's club. Its clientele is
made up of people of all ages and all walks of life. She said
this bill is the result of [conplaints made by] a woman who
danced in the 1980s, when all clubs were regulated by the ABC
Board. The problens she discussed have already been taken care
of. Clubs are licensed and required to have annual inspections.
All dancers nust be enployees, not contractors. Laws are on the
books to deal wth drug wuse, prostitution, sales, sexual
assault, wage and hour issues, and enploynent of mnors. She
mai nt ai ned that high school students are not hired in her club
and that if that is a problem parents, teachers and counsel ors
should be addressing that problem not the |egislature. The
Al aska Suprenme Court has already determ ned that erotic dancing
is constitutionally protected under the federal and state
constitutions.

SENATOR OGAN said he wants to know whether Bethany Carrera's
nmur derer, when found, ever attended adult-oriented cl ubs.

CHAIR SEEKINS closed public testinony, due to no further
partici pants.

SENATOR FRENCH comrented that he is inpressed by the work done
by the House on this bill

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- May 7, 2004



SENATOR OGAN noved SCS CSHB 367(JUD) from commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomendati ons.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried.
#

"#HB 552
CSHB 552( FI N) am GAMBLI NG & GAM NG

MR TOM WRIGHT, staff to the House Finance Committee, which

sponsored HB 552 by request, explained that the bill establishes
an Al aska gam ng conmi ssion designed to oversee the statutes
established in the bill that pertain to ganbling. It also

creates new statutes that authorize the commssion to issue a
license to own and conduct ganbling ganes at a specified
ganbling facility in any municipality in the state with a
popul ati on of 150,000 or nore. The House anended the bill to say
that if a nunicipality adopts an ordinance, it nust be ratified
by a majority of the municipal voters.

MR WRIGHT told menbers that the new ganbling comm ssion would
adm ni ster, regulate and enforce licensing for ganbl i ng
facilities, its enployees and its suppliers. The comm ssion
woul d collect fees and taxes and place theminto a state gam ng
fund, which would consist of all revenue received from ganbling
activities. The fund wll pay any activity conducted by the
comm ssion and other agencies related to ganbling and gam ng.
The state would receive a 17 percent tax; the municipality where
the ganbling facility is located could also collect a tax, but
not nore than 3 percent of adjusted gross receipts. CSHB
522(FI N)am al so creates new class C and class A m sdeneanors for
crines related to associated ganbling operations and activities.
Currently 48 states have sonme form of |egalized ganbling. The
purpose of CSHB 552(FINJam is to provide tools and strict
supervi sion of ganbling and gam ng activities authorized by the
Al aska gam ng comm ssi on

9:05 a.m

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked for a description of the Ilevel of
debate that took place in the House about the possibility that
if this legislation passes and a casino were to be |icensed
that would open the state up for the spread of Indian gamng in
the state.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- May 7, 2004



MR WRIGHT said this bill wuld allow ganbling operations on
certain Indian lands: the Mtlakatla reservation and Kake and
Angoon.

SENATOR OGAN said it was his understanding that the issue of
Native allotnments was not resolved by the Venetie case. He
recalled a briefing given by the fornmer attorney general to the
Majority Caucus on that issue. That was one reason the
| egislature did anay with allowi ng non-profits to conduct Monte
Carl o nights.

MR. WRI GHT had the sane recollection. He noted that Susan Burke,
a Juneau attorney who has worked on this issue, believes that
Native allotnments would not be considered as Indian |and under
the Indian Regul atory Gam ng Act.

SENATOR OGAN surm sed that no one will have the final answer
until the court rules on the question.

MR. WRI GHT agr eed.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if any discussion has taken place about
potential |and swaps for reservation | and.

MR. WRI GHT said he was unable to answer that question as he did
not have enough experience in Indian | aw.

CHAIR SEEKINS referred to Sec. 05.18.100, beginning on page 11,
entitled, E ection or exclusion from facilities, and noted the
section does not clarify that the provision is in addition to
the power of the police to renbve a trespasser. It basically
says the commssion will determine that. He then said, "The
next part of that, if I go down to [Sec. 05.18.120[, on the sane
page, here it appears to nme to subject the investigative powers
of the state and the Jlocal police to the Alaska gamng
comm ssion. It puts it in a subjective role.™

MR, WRIGHT thought that if a trespassing conplaint is filed,
nothing would prohibit the local police force or DPS from
becomi ng involved. He was unable to answer Chair Seekins' second
guesti on.

CHAI R SEEKINS said Sec. 05.18.220 on page 18 appears to give the
Al aska gaming comm ssion the right to issue liquor |icenses and
security guard licenses, which are currently the responsibility
of the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- May 7, 2004



MR WRIGHT said the licensed owner has to apply to the
comm ssion to hold any license if the owner is going to supply
to that ganbling facility. However, the bill also contains
supplier license provisions that say what can be supplied, and
he did not believe that includes alcohol or food. He clarified
that it applies to all other licenses.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it appears that the comm ssion has suppl anted
the authority of DPS in that it says a license holder may apply
to the commssion for and nay hold |icenses that are necessary
for the operation of a ganbling facility, including the Iicense
to prepare and serve food for human consunption and any other
necessary license. The commission will be putting itself in a
position now held by other state agencies because the owner wl|
just go to the comm ssion to get what he needs.

MR WRIGHT said he believes that DEC and sone of the other
agencies that are responsible for food preparation inspections
will still do so.

CHAIR SEEKINS felt that should be clarified in the bill

SENATOR FRENCH referred to Sec. 05.18.010 on page 2, which
pertains to the conmssion itself. He asked if it wll consist
of three menbers and how t hat nunber was arrived at.

MR WRIGHT said that is correct and that various nunbers were
floated around but three is the nunmber the House decided to
adopt. He noted the bill is based on the Indiana ganbling | aw

SENATOR FRENCH said if this bill is enacted, three people wll
decide who will get the one casino |icense.

MR. WRIGHT said the bill contains certain paraneters that nust
be used when determining who will get that one |icense.

SENATOR FRENCH expressed concern that there nmay be a fierce
anount of conpetition for that one casino |license.

MR. WRI GHT said he could not argue that point.

SENATOR FRENCH said he would prefer to see nore decision makers
and a broader array of interests represented on the conm ssion
He said he appreciates the fact that the comm ssion wll include
a person with a |aw enforcenent background and another with an
accounting background and that the mmjority cannot be from any

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- May 7, 2004



one political party. He repeated that his concern is the |arge
anount of power that those three people will have.

MR  WRIGHT explained that one thing the [House Finance
Commttee] wanted to exclude from nmenbership is anyone with a
potential conflict of interest.

SENATOR FRENCH asked, given that a fierce anount of conpetition
for the license is likely, what the appeals structure will be
for the applicants.

MR WRIGHT said the bill contains an appeals process that is
based on the Administrative Procedures Act that can be used for
any di sagreenent with a decision nmade by the conm ssion.

TAPE 04-67, SIDE B

CHAI R SEEKI NS questioned why Sec.05.18.450 on page 25 does not
provi de any authorization for the Anchorage police to inspect a
facility; only the Departnent of Public Safety or comm ssion
enpl oyees can do an inspection.

MR WRIGHT did not believe the local police would be precluded
from doing an inspection and said he was not opposed to
including that in the bill

CHAIR SEEKINS said it appears that the forfeiture provision
allows for the forfeiture of property belonging to innocent
suppliers and mght violate the substantive due processes in
State v. Wlder [626 P2nd 104 1981].

MR WRIGHT pointed out that a supplier's license issued under
this chapter would allow a person to supply security,
surveill ance, suppl i es, noney counting machi nes, ganbl i ng
paraphernalia, supply services, and equipnent to a |icensed
owner. Therefore, a supplier's license is limted to that scope.

CHAI R SEEKINS maintained that the forfeiture section may still
have due process problens. He then referred to Sec. 05.18.540
and said it reduces the level of certain crines already in
Al aska's crimnal code, such as bribery.

MR WRIGHT said the new crinmes established in the bill only
pertain to the ganbling operations.

CHAI R SEEKI NS said he has a problem charging a casino owner wth
a lower crimnal charge than that given to any other ganbling

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- May 7, 2004



operator or otherwise. He then pointed out that (a)(l) and (6)
in Sec. 05.18.540 are duplicative. He indicated that he has not
had a ot of tine to review the bill but from his quick review,
he has sonme serious concerns. He said despite his persona
di sapproval of legalized ganbling, as a legislator he is trying
to craft a bill that he could approve of. He offered to make a
list of the concerns he has with the bill itself so that the
sponsor coul d address sone of them

MR WRIGHT offered to review the |ist.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if nenbers objected to setting the bill
aside for further revi ew

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he had hoped to have a copy of a neno
from i ndependent counsel on the Indian gam ng issue today but
was unable to reach M. Popely. He offered to provide copies at
t he next neeting.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it is not his intent to prevent people from
testifying at this time but, rather, he does not want to take
testimony on the bill in its current form so he would take
public testinony when sone of the concerns are addressed.

SENATOR ELLI S asked about the tinefrane.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he intended to shut the conmttee down
t onor r ow.

#

"#SB 246
SB 246- HATE CRI MES/ DI SCRI M NATI ON TOLERANCE PROG

SENATOR GEORG ANNA LI NCOLN, sponsor of SB 246, asked to be
joined by the legal drafter, M. Luckhaupt. She then pointed out
that the |atest version of SB 246 needed to be adopted by the
committee.

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that the latest draft, |abeled version
Q was before the commttee, and that w thout objection, it was
adopted as the work draft before the commttee.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she would not repeat the testinony she gave
at a previous hearing on SB 246, but would repeat a statenent by
Walt Mnegan, Anchorage Chief of Police, who said when asked
about the difference between rage and hatred that rage is
usually directed at an individual while hatred is directed

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- May 7, 2004



toward a group. M. Mnegan's point was that greed notivates
nost people to commt a crime; however, the primary notive
behind a hate crinme is to create fear in a group.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked Senator Lincoln to review the changes nade
in version Q

SENATOR LINCOLN said the major change was to the title - the
civil aspect was renoved because of the question about the title
containing a dual subject. She asked that M. Luckhaupt review
t he remai ni ng changes.

MR,  JERRY LUCKHAUPT, |legislative counsel, D vision of Legal
Services, told nenbers that Section 1 of one of the previous
versions of the bill was renoved. Section 1 pertained to the
civil enforcenent schenme, which provided the opportunity to sue
for damages. That was renoved because it is already available
under other provisions. The major change was nade in Sections 10
and 11. A provision was added to those sections that describes
the penalties that juveniles can receive. He explained:

To correspond with the hate crime or the juvenile that
directs a <crine at a person because of their
i ndi vi dual characteristics, we provided the sane
penalty for a juvenile that directs a crinme at a
police officer, fire fighter, or other energency
responder. That's section 10 and 11.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked M. Luckhaupt if the hate notivation
issue has been added to a list that already includes those
t hi ngs or whether a new section was created.

MR.  LUCKHAUPT replied that Senator Lincoln's bill contained
additions to the possible penalties for juveniles for other
crimes notivated by hate. He continued, "As part of the
direction | received, the idea was that we wanted to correspond
that, as was done previously in portions of the bill, to the
penalties that are provided for crines that are directed agai nst
| aw enforcenment or other energency responders based upon their
duties and so we added in law enforcenent provisions to the
juvenile penalty schemes and provided the sanme penalties as for
the hate crinme as for the |l aw enforcement officers.”

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if M. Luckhaupt copied the existing

| anguage |ocated elsewhere in the statutes for the police
of ficers.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- May 7, 2004



MR. LUCKHAUPT said |anguage exists in statute for crines
commtted against peace officers that heightens penalties for
both class A felonies and for msdeneanors. He noted the
Legi slature has consistently provided heightened punishnent for
that crime and it my be the only crime the Legislature has
consistently provided greater presunptive terns or nmandatory
m ni mum sentences for m sdeneanors. He expl ai ned:

And so what we did because that was in statute and
from the direction of the Chairman and Senator
Lincoln, we decided to in each place where we're
proposing a greater punishnent for hate crines, if you
don't already inpose a greater punishnment for |aw
enforcenment officers, | brought up the |aw enforcenent
officer to correspond to that and that was just in
these few areas that I'mgoing to highlight.

CHAI R SEEKI NS said nany people who conmmented about the bill felt
that a hate crime should not be hei ghtened above a simlar crine
against a police officer or an energency responder. However,
their objections began to nelt if the notivational |evel was no
greater than the existing language in statute for peace
of ficers.

SENATOR LINCOLN added that is why the title was changed to
include an offense against peace officers, fire fighters and
energency responders to correspond to those areas.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked M. Luckhaupt if that was covered everywhere
he could think of in statute.

MR. LUCKHAUPT said yes, and that was the point of the new draft
version. He said those areas in which the heightened punishnment
| anguage did not exist were raised to correspond with the
puni shment in Senator Lincoln's bill. He explained that Sections
10 and 11 apply the sane penalty for |aw enforcenent officers
and Section 9 allows the court to refer a person with special
pot enti al for rehabilitation to a three-judge panel for
sentencing purposes. The aggravating factors for f el ony
sentencing are on page 5, line 21. He expl ai ned:

[On line 21] (13) is the aggravating factor for crines
comm tted against cops and energency responders, (22)
is the aggravating factor that exists in statute
relating to hate crinmes. So we've added both of those
into this list of offenses where you can't refer the
case to a three-judge panel. Wrking back from there,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- May 7, 2004



the rest of the bill is the same and then Senator
Lincoln pointed out to nme that Section 13 of the bill
has a requirenent that the diversity tol erance program
that is a requirenent of sentencing for juveniles, we
put in a provision saying that the court may not
require sonmebody to take that program wuntil the
Department of Health and Social Services has actually
devel oped, inplenmented, and designated the program as
requi red under the statute so it's not sonething - a
little Catch 22 for people that you have to take the
program as part of their juvenile adjudication that
doesn't actually exist yet.

SENATOR FRENCH referred to Section 7 on page 4, line 27, which
reads:

(k) A defendant is convicted of a m sdeneanor in AS 11
shal | be sentenced as

and noved to delete the word "is".

CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that w thout objection [Anendnent 1] was
adopt ed.

MR. LUCKHAUPT indicated that |aw enforcenent officers were also
added to Section 7. The category of a court being able to
classify sonmeone as a worst offender applies to the hate crine
situation in paragraph (1) on line 30, and it also applies to
the existing |anguage for other penalty schenes relating to
directing the offense at a police officer, firefighter, or
energency responder. The idea of a worst offender is based on
the rationale that the Alaska courts have devel oped over tineg,
which allows the court to inpose a sentence at the top end of
the range or to the maximum offense if that offender is
classified as the worst in that class of offender.

SENATOR FRENCH, in response to a question from Senator Qgan,
said the notive of the person who attacked a peace officer is
not consi dered. He conti nued:

The officer in the uniformis sort of protected by the
uniform and we don't worry about the nental state of
the person who assaults a police officer or a
paramedi ¢ or anybody else. W just say that's a worst
offense. You're going to get a mninmm of 60 days and
you're a worst offender, which authorizes a maxi nmum
sentence if the judge decides to inpose it.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- May 7, 2004



MR. LUCKHAUPT agr eed.

SENATOR OGAN commented that he would be nore confortable
confining it to a person who conmitted a crinme against a peace
of ficer because that person was a peace officer or paranmedic and
focus on the intent of the crinme rather than the conm ssion of
the crine.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if this bill will now treat a crine against
a person because of the person's race, etcetera, at the sane
| evel of sentencing and with aggravators as a crine against a
police officer.

MR, LUCKHAUPT said there is no |onger an aggravator for class B
and class C felonies or an increased presunptive term for first
of fenses directed against peace officers. Those were renoved by
the Legislature three or four years ago. He chose not to put
those back in after the discussion yesterday because those were
removed at the request of +the peace officers and their
associ ations because they felt they were getting greater
sentences than any presunptive term that could be provided in
statute. Those are the only two areas that differ and that was
to foll ow what the Legislature has previously done.

CHAIR SEEKINS asked if there is now an aggravator for class B
and C felonies, for exanple a crine based on sexual abuse.

MR, LUCKHAUPT said that is correct. They were in the original
bill and remain in version Q as Sections 3 and 4.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked if that sanme rationale would apply to a hate
crime for a class Bor Cfelony as it would to peace officers.

MR. LUCKHAUPT said possibly but it would depend on the sentences
judges are giving. He explained that when those provisions were
removed four or five years ago, the thinking was that the
aggravating factors could be applied to the sentences of worst
of fenders. The Legislature did not want to include presunptive
terms because judges were inclined to follow the presunptive
terms. He said in this case, if there is the perception that
hate notivated crines are not receiving an adequate starting
poi nt, making a distinction would be beneficial.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if this language is all attached to a
notivation that is actually illegal.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- May 7, 2004



MR, LUCKHAUPT said anything related to civil enforcenent was
renoved so an action for damages based upon a coment soneone
made woul d not apply.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if there would have to be an underlying

crimnal act with an aggravator. He noted the bill does not
contain any definition of sexual orientation. This version was
derived from a Departnent of Law bill, which was introduced two

years ago, and he is not aware of what the thinking was on that
topic. He deferred to Ms. Carpeneti.

CHAIR SEEKINS said that was the one area that remined
unresol ved anong the people he worked with to get support for
the bill. He noted that version S had been distributed and
addresses that topic. He then described version S as foll ows.

In the first part, Senator Lincoln renoved the civi
liability and we've left that al one.

Secondly, | think we've gotten everything except in
the area of what the offense is - we've renoved sexual
orientation to address that question.

SENATOR ELLIS asked for the rationale behind renoving sexual
orientation.

CHAIR SEEKINS said it was renoved to get support for the bill.
He pointed out that sexual orientation is not nentioned anywhere
else in statute and he is not sure that subject should be
addressed for the first tinme in this |egislation.

SENATOR ELLIS asked if hate crines based on sexual orientation
woul d not be addressed.

CHAIR SEEKINS said sexual orientation would be on par wth
anyt hing other than what is addressed in the bill

SENATOR OGAN said he has heard privately from pastors that they
are worried that if they quote at a church service certain
passages of the Bible that deal with sexual orientation, they
coul d be charged with sone sort of crine.

CHAI R SEEKI NS said he would bring that up for discussion when he
finished explaining the bill. He continued:

The next area that | went into was in - speaking again
with some of the people who |'ve been working wth,

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 20- May 7, 2004



they've said that comrunity service for a juvenile -
we yesterday passed a bill that on a third offense for
driving under the influence of alcohol a juvenile had
a 60 to 80 hour community work service schedule. Wat
we' ve suggested in here was 60 to 80 hours [page 6,
subsection (6)]. W would just reduce it from 100
hours flat to 60 to 80 hours to give the judge sone
di scretion and then farther down, in paragraph (b), it
states that the court wuld allow the mnor's
successful participation in the diversity tolerance
programto count toward the m ni mum hours of comunity
work service. If they go to the diversity class, that
counts against their conmunity service tine.

And then finally, at the very end, | believe on page
11, we just put ... a four-hour sideboard on the
|l ength...[page 10, lines 29 and 30]. The program

should be designed to be conpleted in four hours or
|l ess - that's the only change that we made.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked Chair Seekins if the diversity tolerance
program cannot be nore than four hours.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he was just trying to put a sideboard on the
ti meframe and woul d not object to an ei ght-hour program

SENATOR LINCOLN explained that is why she put |anguage in the
bill allowing the departnment to devel op these prograns.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he was trying to provide sonme direction about
how conpr ehensi ve the program shoul d be.

SENATOR LI NCOLN did not think four hours was | ong enough.

SENATOR OGAN said he understands why the sponsor wants a
diversity training program and that he would like to think such
training would have a positive effect but he doesn't believe the
prejudi ces that people are raised with are likely to change with
such training.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she is wunconfortable with a four-hour
program She was thinking the time spent in a tolerance program
woul d count toward the conmunity service hours. She said she is
unaware of any program that will reach everyone but was hoping
the program would spark sonme good in a person and she doubts
that can be done in a four-hour tinme period.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -21- May 7, 2004



CHAIR SEEKINS said he would agree to change the requirenent to
an eight-hour program He said he trusts the Legislature nore
than he trusts the bureaucracy to set those limts.

SENATOR LINCOLN said she also does not like the "or |ess”
| anguage because the requirenment could be as short as a 30
m nut e program

CHAIR SEEKINS said he would agree to putting a mninmm and
maximumtime limt in the bill

SENATOR THERRI AULT said it would still be up to the departnent
to develop the program the bill only contains the upper tine
limt. He did not think the department would design a 30-minute
program

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she preferred that no tine limt be placed
in the bill and thinks the departnment will have to do sone
research and identify what prograns work.

SENATOR FRENCH commrented that he was thinking the program would
be designed to do sone indoctrination one day, let the person
sleep on it and do nore indoctrination the next day. He felt an
overnight reflection mght stinulate greater understanding and
was thinking of a 16-hour program

SENATOR LINCOLN said that is why she suggested no less than
ei ght hours.

SENATOR OGAN felt the public humliation suffered by the
perpetrators of the paintball incident was probably nore
effective in changi ng behavior than any cl ass.

SENATOR THERRI AULT agreed with Senator French that time for
reflection could be wuseful but that could be provided with a
four-hour program for two days each, and although he is not
suggesting a specific nunber of hours, he sees the need for a
cap. He thought that to sone extent, public condemation keeps
society on track. He said he was unaware of version S, which
does not cover sexual orientation. He questioned how a 20-year
old who dates 15-year olds would be considered under the bill
and cautioned the need to be careful.

CHAI R SEEKINS said he did not want to open that "Pandora's Box"
and was only trying to get support for the bill, which required
that topic be left out. He then said he had no problem wth
requiring a two-day program with a mninmum of six hours and a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -22- May 7, 2004



maxi mrum of 12. He said he would prefer to use public humliation
but does not know how to do that under the | aw.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said he believes the Legislature needs to
give the agency that designs the training program sone |atitude
to put together a program that works and would not want to
require the agency to split the training program over a two-day
peri od.

SENATOR FRENCH suggested putting a cap at 12 hours so that the
program cannot be conpleted in one day. He then so noved.

CHAIR SEEKINS announced that wthout objection, the notion
carried.

SENATOR ELLIS questioned whether the conmttee had adopted
version S

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified that it had not and noved to adopt
version S as the working version before the committee.

SENATOR ELLI'S objected and said he is opposed to the deletion of
sexual orientation because he believes it would be easy to get a
standard definition of sexual orientation.

TAPE 04-68, SIDE A

SENATOR ELLIS maintained that to exclude certain people is
W ong.

SENATOR LINCOLN said that while she appreciates the Chair's
effort to pass the bill out of commttee, sexual orientation is
a termthat has been used by prograns el sewhere for hate crines.
In addition, she has received letters supporting the inclusion
of sexual orientation in the bill. She agreed that sexual
orientation is not defined in statute at this tinme but said that
doesn't nean it can't be done. She said as the sponsor of the
bill, she believes it should remain in the bill because it has
wi despread support.

CHAI R SEEKINS thanked Senator Lincoln but said a lot of work
woul d have to be done to include it and with it he could not get
support for the bill

SENATOR OGAN said he is wunconfortable with adopting a new
committee substitute this late in the session.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -23- May 7, 2004



CHAI R SEEKI NS announced an at-ease.

CHAI R SEEKINS asked for a roll call vote on the notion to adopt
version S. The notion carried wth Senators Therriault, Ogan
and Seekins in favor and Senators Ellis and French opposed.

CHAI R SEEKINS noved to adopt Anendnent 1, to renove the word
"is" on line 24 of page 4. Wthout objection, the notion
carried.

CHAI R SEEKI NS noved to adopt Anendnent 2, to replace the nunber
"4" with the nunber "12" on page 10, line 30. He then announced
t hat w thout objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

SENATOR LINCOLN asked if he intended to also delete the words
"or | ess".

For the purpose of «clarification, CHAIR SEEKINS noved to
wi t hdraw Amendnent 2. The notion carried with no objection

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified that Anmendnent 2 is to read as follows,
"to be conmpleted in a maxi mnum of 12 hours.™

SENATOR OGAN raised a point of order and asked that the notion
to adopt Anendnment 2 be rescinded.

SENATOR OGAN nmpoved to rescind the commttee's action on
Amendrment 2. Wth no objection, Anendnent 2 was before the
commi ttee.

CHAI R SEEKINS noved to w thdraw Amendnent 2. Wthout objection
Amendnent 2 was w t hdr awn.

CHAI R SEEKI NS nmoved to adopt Anmendnent 3, which would replace,
on page 10, line 30, the phrase "in four hours or less" with "in
a maxi mum of 12 hours.™

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if that neans the program nust be designed
to be conpleted within 12 hours.

CHAI R SEEKI NS asked if she wanted to include a m ni mum nunber of
hours. He then w thdrew Amendnent 3 and rephrased it to say "in
12 hours." There being no objection, Arendnent 3 was adopt ed.

SENATOR FRENCH t hanked committee nenbers for their hard work on

this legislation and then noved CSSB 246(JUD) to its next
committee of referral with its attached fi scal notes.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 24- May 7, 2004



CHAI R SEEKI NS announced that with no objection, CSSB 246(JUD)
noved from comm ttee.
#

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked that M. Hove distribute copies of
three nmenos that detail sonme of the problens with the passage of
HB 22 to nenbers.

CHAIR SEEKINS then recessed the neeting to the call of the
chair.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -25- May 7, 2004



